
Page 1 of 9 

                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee meeting held in G17 

Monday 11 November 2024, 4pm 
 

Govs present: Connie Laing; John Holroyd (Chair); Lisa Wilkinson (from 16.07); 
Mo Bunter (Principal); Mohammed Usman (via Teams until 16.41); 
Richard Armstrong 

 

In attendance:  Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Mark Mitchell 
(AP); Sharon Roper (Clerk) 

  A&R Govs attending F&E meeting: Ed Wynn   
 

Apologies:  Chris Kneale 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies, 
chairing 

 
JHO welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 
 
 

 
 

 
3. Minutes 30/9/24 
 

 
3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 30/9/24, previously 
circulated. 
Minutes approved by Committee subject to the amendment 
below, signed by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2  Matters arising not covered on agenda: 
Action Log, previously circulated. 
1. (30/9/24 Min 4.1.11) Decarbonisation Strategy Survey, 
RAR asked when governors will see the survey, SWA said 
it will be prioritised into an operational plan with a priority 
list, it will come to governors when funding becomes 
available, via the capital investment plan. 
2. F&E members approved closure of the following actions:  
1-2-3-4-5-6-9-11-12-13-14-15-16-17-21-22-23-26-27-29-30-

31-33. 

 

 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 

 
4. Finance  

 
4. F&E committee members noted August management 
accounts, and reviewed September management 
accounts, all previously circulated.  
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 9 

LME summarised key points in the September accounts:   
1. LME apologised that the accounts do not have an 
accompanying narrative, this is mainly due to workload 
around the year end accounts.   
2. LME will work on timing issues in the accounts and used 
an example of the depreciation line when compared to 
budget, she will start to charge depreciation the month after 
the addition is purchased.  
3. In relation to grants, Hirst needs to be split out.   
4. Catering income relates to profit share from Aramark. 
The auditors allowed it to be included in this year’s 
accounts.  
5. The campus fees are under budget. ESFA will not allow 
GC to charge for student lanyards. A Campus Fees 
package will be launched next year which will be used to 
encourage payment. The variance for campus fees will stay 
in the monthly figures.  
6. The worse financial scenario of the teachers pay rise has 
been assumed at 5.5%.  
7. Pay variance will be reviewed with the HR director to 
check the assumptions, there is a variance of £29,000 
before on-costs, mainly due to the impact of staff absence.  
8. A £20,000 credit has been received as a gas refund. The 
Rates bill has increased by £30,000 because Park and 
Conway buildings have been missed from previous bills, the 
new annual amount is £70,000.  
JHO asked if this will be reclaimed for previous years – it 
won’t. The Valuations Office have made a site visit recently 
and are now aware of all the buildings on the campus.   
9. LME said that there is work to do, but the accounts are 
where she expected to be at month two.  
10. EWY asked about the increased national insurance 
payments from April – this is funded because GC is a public 
sector body and is a benefit of the ONS reclassification. 
EWY asked how this works – there have not been any 
instructions on how to process this yet.  
11. RAR asked about the income line being £131,000 short 
– LME confirmed that smooth payments are being received 
from ESFA, who have provided a remittance schedule, and 
this variance will disappear. 
12. JHO asked about the income line being higher than the  
budgeted income line and an expected outturn deficit of 
£150,00 – LME said the swing and deficit is based on staff 
increments and she will be able to predict more accurately 
when this is resolved.   
13. JHO asked when October’s accounts will be available – 
LME receives management accounts 25th monthly, it takes 
two weeks to reconcile and check the accounts and then a 
narrative is prepared.   
14. Accounts to the end of December will be presented to 
F&E members at the next meeting 3/2/25.  
15. CLA asked that October’s accounts are shared with 
F&E members when they are ready and not wait until the 
next meeting in February. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 



Page 3 of 9 

 
4.2 Fixed asset register, previously circulated –  
1. The Fixed Asset register will be rolled forward monthly, to 
see how the depreciation has been charged, what assets 
have been purchased and how it ties back to the balance 
sheet. Ultimately the assets will be uploaded to the 
Smartlog system. 
2. JHO asked if there have been benefits to introducing the 
fixed asset register – it has highlighted to staff when assets 
need replacing, helps facilitate financial forecasts and 
assets can be checked back to the register.  
JHO asked if the assets exist – one issue has been the 
Hirst asset of £14.1 million which in addition to the building 
including fixtures and fittings. 
3. RAR asked how the DfE capital grant works with 
depreciation varying for different items – DfE did not have 
an itemised list of equipment on site, LME has worked out 
the split between fixtures, fittings and the building and the 
auditors have accepted this.  
RAR asked how ESFA will depreciate £14.1 million – this is 
unknown. MBR had a similar issue when initially insuring 
Hirst Building, DfE refused to provide a rebuild figure.  
  

 
5. 2023/24 Year-
end Report & 
Financial 
Statements 

 
The 2023/24 Year-end Report and Financial Statements, 
previously circulated.  
 
1. JHO asked how did the audit go – it went well, the 
finance manager was well prepared, and LME is 
experienced and has an audit background.  
The auditors did not find anything.  
Flagstone interest and Aramark profit were allowed to go 
into the accounts for 2024/25.  
2. JHO asked if the audit was sufficiently robust and 
challenging – it was, LME had anticipated everything that 
she was challenged about. A large portion of the auditor 
testing was around staffing costs and funding. 
3. EWY asked what materiality threshold was set – this is 
unknown.   
4. LWI asked if the external auditors are renewed on an 
annual basis – the external auditors were reappointed in 
February 2022. 
5. LWI asked if the auditors have made comparisons to our 
audits in previous years – the auditors gave positive 
feedback this year.  
6. JHO asked about the numbers on the year end 
statements that differ to the July accounts that were 
previously circulated to F&E members – LME said there is a 
profit reconciliation of £14,000 between the July accounts 
that F&E members saw at their last meeting and the year-
end financial statements. This is made up of various items – 
LME will share how this has been calculated with F&E 
members.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 



Page 4 of 9 

7. CLA sent suggested amendments to the report for 
actioning.  
 
F&E members recommend approval of the 2023/24 Year-
end Report and Financial Statements. 
 

 
Clerk 

 
6. Estate 
Management 
Update 

 
The Estates report was previously circulated: 
 
SWA highlighted the following: 
1. The Hirst building defect period has now ended.  
Eleven defects remain which DfE have accepted.  
The living roof is not growing as expected and will probably 
be reseeded.  
Warranties are in place for Hirst. 
2. A programme of works took place over half term, in terms 
of upgrades and maintenance.  
3. RAR asked about soundproofing – a fire door was 
installed in the Principal’s office; this meets health and 
safety requirements but did not make the office soundproof 
as expected.  
Soundproofing has worked in G1A. 
RAR asked about noise from the music studio – SWA is 
awaiting feedback from PE. 
RAR asked if further rooms will be soundproofed – there is 
one more room to consider. The basement has been 
repurposed for music and the noise is expected to be less 
of an issue.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 

 
7. Catering 
 

 
SWA gave a verbal update on catering.  
 
1. The new catering offer is still positive with a good working 
relationship. The caterers have some staffing issues which 
they are working on, but this has not impacted on quality.   
2. JHO asked if the OCS senior team have left site – they 
are not on site as often.  
3. Due to the queues OCS asked about opportunities for an 
additional catering outlet and they are looking at their 
investment pot to fund it. There will be a new catering outlet 
when the new build is complete, and SWA is inclined to wait 
for this. 
An outside pod is an option in the outside space next to 
Hirst – MBR asked about how this will affect the fire 
assembly point. SWA said potentially the landscaped 
section could be used for a pod, (this will be set back from 
the fire assembly point), together with a ramp to make this 
area more accessible.   
RAR said when the new building opens with a new catering 
outlet it will be easier to see what is needed. 
JHO asked when the new building will open – July 2025, 
and students will use it from September 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 9 

 
8. Procurement 
Updates 

 
There were no procurement updates. 
 

 
 
 

 
10. Policies to 
review 
 

 
Water Management Policy – 
The existing policy has been expanded to address the risks 
and the legislation that sits alongside it, setting out the 
required standards of the College and detailing the 
management system and responsibilities.   
 
RAR asked about incidents a year ago when the water 
wasn’t hot enough, and the contract was changed to include 
legionella testing – the contract is now comprehensive. 
There was an issue at Highfields last year, which was 
identified and dealt with.  
 
JHO asked about the title of the policy – the correct title is 
Management for Legionella and Water Control, and this is 
how the policy will be described on future agendas. 
 
F&E Committee Members approved the Management for 
Legionella and Water Control Policy.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 

 
11. Committee 
attendance 
2023/24 

 
F&E members noted committee attendance 2023/24, 
previously circulated.  

 
 
 
 

 
12. Any other 
business 

 
RAR reminded members that if they cannot attend meetings 
they should notify the Clerk in advance – there have been 
quoracy issues in some committee meetings. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
13. Confidentiality 

 
Nothing identified.  

 

 
14. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; Monday 3 February 25, at College  
 

 
 
 

Joint Meeting 
with A&R 
committee and 
auditors 

Joint Meeting with Audit & Risk Committee and 
Auditors, 5.00pm 
Joint Meeting with Audit & Risk Committee and 
Auditors, 5.00pm to consider 2023/24 Year-end Report 
& Financial Statements, External Audit Report 2023/24, 
and letter of representation, all previously circulated 
(these Joint Meeting minutes are replicated in A&R 
Committee minutes). 
 
JHO welcomed A&R and F&E committee members and 
MBE and PGO to the joint meeting.   

 

 
1. 2023/24 Year-
end Report & 
Financial 
Statements  

 
2023/24 Year-end report and Financial Statements, 
previously circulated. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 9 

1. MBE said there is enough scope to make amendments to 
the report, if required, JHO has identified some 
amendments but nothing material.  
2. JHO asked how GC’s surpluses compare to MBE’s other 
clients – compared to his other college clients, there are 
some that are similar and some have less surplus.  
3. GC’s staff cost percentages are efficient and are one of 
the lowest of their clients. MBR asked if there is a national 
average of staffing costs to income – MBE said 70%-75% 
but an average figure can be misleading. 
4. JHO said the audit appears to have gone well, MBE 
agreed and said the split of the finance and estate roles has 
worked well.  
5. MBE has seen improvement with GC Risk Registers this 
year. 
6. SIR asked about the unfunded pay increase of 5.5% - 
MBE said if the decision is not reversed by the government, 
together with National Insurance increases, in the long term 
Sixth Form Colleges will begin to feel a detrimental effect.  
RAR said that this appears to be further pressure to force 
sixth form colleges to academise and reminded members 
that any surplus held by sixth form colleges is due to be 
reviewed by government in 2025.  
7. PGO said he’s seen good practice at GC and there are  
other areas where GC is working to improve process. 
 
F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the 
2023/24 Year-end Report and Financial Statements.  
 

LME 
 

 
2. External Audit 
Report 2023/24 

 
External Audit Report 2023/24, previously circulated. 
 
MBE thanked the Finance team and said this has been the 
smoothest audit undertaken at the college.  
 
1. The Report is produced for GC, the ESFA and to satisfy 
communication requirements.   
2. At the planning stage the main risks facing GC are 
detailed, these are similar for all colleges and academy 
trusts. The report details the audit work undertaken on 
these risks and the conclusion is that the external auditors 
are happy with everything.  
3. The income and expenditure account is straight forward. 
Total income  is £16.9 million, part of the income increase 
relates to an increase in the amount payable per student. 
The bottom line is a surplus of just over £1 million after 
deferred income, depreciation, local government pension 
scheme adjustments, staff costs and interest. 
In the last three years surplus cash has been saved for 
capital projects.  
Staff costs percentages (69%), this figure is very good 
compared to 7 years ago.  
4. The balance sheet shows Hirst building being transferred 
in from DfE, the grants received for the building are shown 

 



Page 7 of 9 

as a liability under deferred capital grants and this is 
released every year matching depreciation.   
5. Cash has increased to £5.6 million mainly due to short 
term deposits in the cash flow.  
6. The key measure of liquidity is net current assets, which 
is £4.7 million. The strong liquid position of the college has 
been maintained.  
7. The actuaries reported a pension asset again; however, 
the asset ceiling report reduces the asset to zero because  
the asset will not result in a reduction in future contributions.  
ESFA have been informed of this advice given to clients 
and they are happy with it.  
8. The cash flow statement explains how the surplus 
translates into cash. The surplus of £1 million plus non-cash 
items generated £1.3 million, there was some spend, some 
short-term deposits were added back into the bank account 
leaving a headline movement of cash of £1.6 million. This 
amount is distorted due to £1.3 million held on deposit. 
9. There were no internal control issues. Issues routinely 
picked up with other clients include management accounts 
not being up to standard and controls over credit cards and 
authorisation of expenditure.   
10. The unadjusted misstatements are above triviality but 
following discussions with management there was no need 
to adjust the financial statements. The only misstatement 
that would affect income and expenditure account is bank 
interest that could have been brought into 2023/24 financial 
statements. 
EWY asked if this is being added into financial year 2024-
25 – it is.   
11. EWY asked what materiality threshold is set for the 
audit – this is 2% of income/expenditure. The auditors do 
pick up on things below the threshold, the official materiality 
is calculated and goes into the sample sizes.  
12. JHO asked if the pension asset is a difference in 
approach by Murray Smith – there has been much debate 
around this, ESFA would not give a decision about 
recognising the asset and neither did the Institute of 
Chartered Accountancy report. Virtually all audit firms this 
year will have a zero figure.  
RAR asked if this also applies to pension liabilities – MBE 
said that liabilities are always reported.  
 
F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the 
External Audit Report 2023/24. 
 

 
3. Murray Smith 
letter of 
representation 

 
F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the 
Letter of Representation. 

 

 
4. Risk Registers 
& Summary 

 
This was an agenda item for both committees and therefore 
the item was moved to the joint part of the A&R/F&E 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 9 

 
SWA summarised the Risk Register Summary, College 
Risk Register and Hirst Risk Register, all previously 
circulated.  
 
1. E1 & E3 (Disaster recovery policy and emergency plan) 
Good progress has been made, and these are now within 
risk appetite. The policy and plan are both on the A&R 
agenda (11/11/24).   
2. Two new risks have been added: (E10) Capital 
development projects do not meet deadlines and (R4) 
Careers and Skills Lead Governor vacancy.  
3. (E17H) Hirst building not working as intended, Hirst has 
been live for 12 months and the defects period has ended; 
this risk has been archived.  
4. EWY asked about the risk for Careers & Skills Lead 
Governor vacancy which sits at a residual risk score of 15, 
the highest risk across both registers, and if this has an 
impact with Ofsted.  
MBR will be speaking to a college who were inspected 
recently and will ask if Ofsted expect a Career & Skills Lead 
Governor to be in place.  
MBR has also asked SFCA colleagues the same question, 
nobody has been asked this by Ofsted, potentially this is a 
risk score that can be dropped.  
All governors have been asked to complete a skills template 
to help demonstrate the breadth of experience throughout 
the Board, and governor link visits have an impact. 
MUS asked how long an Ofsted inspection lasts – it takes 
four days. 
5. RAR asked if staff strike action is recorded on the risk 
register – it isn’t currently, this will be added into the risk 
register.  
LWI asked if GC is contacting the media to highlight the 
unfunded pay rise and to advise them that GC staff are 
prepared to strike to highlight the issue.  
LWI asked what the financial impact is for GC to fund the 
pay rise – it is £140,000 for this academic year.  
 
This conversation took place at the beginning of the A&R 
meeting: 
6. PGO asked that Digital Disruption is considered for the 
Risk Register in addition to Cyber Security. There are 
currently risks around Artificial Intelligence and Deep Fakes. 
There should also be central control across college with AI 
because staff uploading AI software exposes the college to 
new risks. 
EWY expects the new strategic and operational plans to 
have further detail around this.   
MBR said that the SFCA national committee have shared a 
national AI policy today – this will feed into the Risk register, 
once GC have put an AI policy in place.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MBR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
MBR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MBR/SWA 
 
MBR/SWA 
 
 
SWA 

 



Page 9 of 9 

 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 12/12/24 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 3/2/25 


